Public Document Pack

Mid
Devon

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Licencing Sub Committee

Friday, 17 May 2024 at 10.00 am
Phoenix House

Membership

L J Cruwys
J M Downes (TBC)
L G J Kennedy

AGENDA

Members are reminded of the need to make declarations of interest prior to any
discussion which may take place

1

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN
To elect a Chairman for the Sub-Committee.

DETERMINATION OF A NEW PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION
FOR WEMBWORTHY VILLAGE HALL, THE VILLAGE,
WEMBWORTHY, CHULMLEIGH, DEVON, EX18 7QR (Pages 5 - 58)

An application has been received for a new premises licence for
Wembworthy Village Hall, The Village, Wembworthy, Chulmleigh,
Devon, EX18 7QR.

Relevant representations have been received and the Licensing
Authority (Mid Devon District Council) must hold a hearing to determine
the application.

Stephen Walford
Chief Executive
2 May 2024

Committee Administrator: Angie Howell

Tel: 01884 234251

Email: ahowell@middevon.gov.uk

This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk



http://www.middevon.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE
DATE OF HEARING: 17 MAY 2024

DETERMINATION OF A NEW PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION FOR
WEMBWORTHY VILLAGE HALL, THE VILLAGE, WEMBWORTHY, CHULMLEIGH,
DEVON, EX18 7QR

Cabinet Member(s): David Wulff, Cabinet Member for Community & Leisure

Responsible Officer: Simon Newcombe, Corporate Manager for Public Health,
Regulation & Housing.

Reason for Report: An application has been received for a new premises
licence for Wembworthy Village Hall, The Village,
Wembworthy, Chulmleigh, Devon, EX18 7QR.

Relevant representations have been received and the
Licensing Authority (Mid Devon District Council) must
hold a hearing to determine the application.

RECOMMENDATION: That this application be decided in accordance with the
licensing objectives.

Financial Implications: The potential cost of defending an appeal in the courts.

Legal Implications: If there is an appeal against the decision the Council could find
itself bearing the costs.

Risk Assessment: If the decision is not reasonably and lawfully made it could be
overturned on appeal to the Magistrates’ Court.

Equality Impact Assessment: No equality issues identified for this report.
Relationship to Corporate Plan: Not applicable
Impact on climate change: Not applicable

Additional information relevant to this application: The process of applying for
these licences is prescribed by regulations made under the Licensing Act 2003. The
applicant must copy their applications to the “Responsible Authorities” consisting of
the Police, Fire Service, Weights and Measures (Trading Standards), body
responsible for Health and Safety (Environmental Health), Environmental Health for
nuisance, the Planning Authority, the Licensing Authority, the local Director of Public
Health, the body responsible for Child Protection and the Home Office. If the
application is submitted online the Licensing Authority must forward it to all
Responsible Authorities.

Page 3



Although not a requirement under the Licensing Act 2003, this Council also notifies
the relevant town or parish council for where the premises are located.

Applicants are also obliged to advertise their applications in two ways — on the
premises and in a local newspaper, or, if there is none, in a local newsletter, circular
or similar document circulating in the area in which the premises are situated.

1.0 THE PREMISES

1.1  An application has been submitted for a new premises licence for Wembworthy
Village Hall, The Village, Wembworthy, Chulmleigh, Devon, EX18 7QR.

1.2 The applicant has given the following description of the premises in the
application form:

‘Typical layout for a village hall, situated just on the outskirts of Wembworthy
Village, on the road leading into the village, set back about 30 metres off the
road. A large public space, with ladies and gents toilets, and kitchen area off
the hall. 3 fully functional fire exits. Outside car park suitable for 12 cars.
Grassed area immediately outside with picnic benches’.

2.0 PREMISES LICENSING HISTORY

2.1 This is an application for a new premises licence and there is no premises
licence history as such. However, Temporary Event Notices* (TENs) have
previously been used to authorise licensable activities at this site.

* A TEN is a ‘notice’ which is submitted by a person to authorise licensable
activities on a temporary basis. It is not an application and assuming the
statutory provisions are complied with and no representations are made by the
Police or Environmental Health, TENs cannot be refused by the Licensing
Authority.

2.2 So the Sub-Committee are aware, there were 10 TENs in 2023 and there have
been 2 so far in 2024.

2.3  Mr Colm Fay was the ‘Premises User’ for 5 of the TENs in 2023 and has also
submitted the 2 in 2024.

2.4  The Licensing Team cannot find details of any complaints made about the
premises on its system(s). If an Interested Party has previously made a
complaint about the premises they should provide us with details of this prior to
the hearing so it can, if necessary, be sent to the Sub-Committee.

3.0 THE APPLICATION

3.1  The application for a new premises licence was submitted by Mr Fay on behalf
of the Village Hall Committee.

Page 4



3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

3.2

Mr Fay is a Personal Licence holder with this Council and is also the proposed
Designated Premises Supervisor for the application.

In summary, the following has been applied for:

- Indoors / Outdoors :
Activity (or both) Days Times
Live music Indoors Friday and 12:00 — 23:30
Saturday
Recorded music Indoors Friday and 12:00 — 23:30
Saturday
For consumption Friday,
Supply of alcohol both ON and OFF | Saturday and | 12:00 — 23:30
the premises Sunday
Hours premises Friday,
P . N/A Saturday and | 12:00 — 23:59
open to the public
Sunday

The application form is attached as Annex 1 and the plan submitted with the
application is attached as Annex 2.

CIRCUMSTANCES IN WHICH ENTERTAINMENT ACTIVITIES ARE NOT
LICENSABLE

Many activities that previously required a licence are no longer themselves
licensable under the Licensing Act 2003 (assuming specific requirements are
met). Further details about this can be found here:

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/entertainment-licensing-changes-under-the-live-
music-act

Relevant to this application is the provision of live and recorded music and in
summary, a licence is not required for these activities if:

« it takes place between 8AM and 11PM; and
« it takes place at an alcohol on-licensed premises; and

« the audience is no more than 500 people

Page 5



https://www.gov.uk/guidance/entertainment-licensing-changes-under-the-live-music-act
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/entertainment-licensing-changes-under-the-live-music-act

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.0

6.1

In practice, this means that any conditions on a licence which apply to live and
recorded music in these circumstances will be ‘suspended’ because the
activities themselves are not considered licensable.

With regards to this application, and without prejudice to the decision of the
Sub-Committee, it would appear that although live and recorded music have
been applied for Friday and Saturday between 12:00 — 23:30, it would
potentially not be licensable until after 23:00.

It must be noted that issues or problems relating to activities which are not
considered licensable can still be dealt with via other means. For example, if
music is causing a nuisance, Environmental Health can still take action under
the Environmental Protection Act 1990 and from a licensing perspective, the
licence itself can be reviewed because premises have an overarching duty to
promote the four licensing objectives.

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

All applicants are required to set out in their application the steps they intend to
take to promote the four licensing objectives. These are:

The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety

The prevention of public nuisance; and
The protection of children from harm

The applicant has provided information and proposals on this, and in summary,
the steps they intend to take are as follows:

e All staff engaged in licensable activity at the premises will receive
information in relation to the following:

o The Challenge 25 scheme in operation at the premises, including the
forms of identification that are acceptable.

e We will also be advised from the responsible authorities.
e Clear and legible notice shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting
patrons to respect the needs of local residents and businesses and to leave

the vicinity as quickly and quietly as possible.

Full details of these proposals can be seen within section M of the application
(Annex 1).

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES
Responsible Authorities under the Licensing Act 2003 are notified of all

premises licence applications. The onus is on each Responsible Authority to
determine when they have appropriate grounds to make a representation.

Page 6



6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

The Responsible Authorities are:

e Police

e Fire Service

e Environmental Health (nuisance and health and safety)
Planning Authority

Licensing Authority

Health and Safety Executive

Weights and Measures (Trading Standards)

the body responsible for Child Protection

the local Director of Public Health

Home Office

No representations were received from any Responsible Authority concerning
this application. As a result, they are not party to the hearing.

OTHER PERSONS

The Licensing Act 2003 allows ‘Other Persons’ to make representations
provided they are relevant and not considered frivolous or vexatious. To be
relevant, a representation must relate to the likely effect of the grant of a licence
on the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. The revised
Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Section 182
Guidance) states that ‘... representations should relate to the impact of
licensable activities carried on from premises on the objectives’ (Paragraph
9.4).

The Licensing Authority received one relevant representation concerning the
application and this was in opposition to the application (or ‘negative’). This
representation was originally in the form of a letter (attached as Annex 3). The
Licensing Team then asked the relevant party to complete the standard
representation form as this can sometimes help them to focus on the four
licensing objectives. This form was subsequently received and is attached as
Annex 4.

The Licensing Officer has attached both responses to this report as it appears
that the initial letter may contain more information about some of the issues
raised. For example, the letter mentions that the light concern is a result of
‘security and fairy’ lights whereas the representation form just mentions ‘light
pollution’.

It is the Licensing Officer’s view that some elements of the representation are
lacking in information. However, paragraph 9.9 of the Section 182 Guidance
states:

‘It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any
aspect of a representation should be given to the person making that
representation. The subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for
the person or body making the representation to amplify and clarify it’.

Page 7



7.5

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

So the Sub-Committee are aware, a second representation was received but
this was not considered relevant to the four licensing objectives and was
therefore not accepted.

LICENSING OFFICER ASSESSMENT AND COMMENTS ON THE
REPRESENTATION RECEIVED

In order to assist the Licensing Sub-Committee, the general topics that have
been raised in the representation received are summarised below and
information provided as to why they are considered as either being relevant or
not relevant. This section of the report does not seek to reproduce the
representation in full, as it is attached separately.

What follows is the view of the Licensing Officer based on the information
available at the time of completing this report. If any Interested Party has
comments or observations to make about what follows they are asked to
contact the Licensing Team on receipt of this report and provide any information
in support of their view. This can be done by emailing
licensing@middevon.gov.uk. The Sub-Committee can then consider the
issue(s) that have been raised at the hearing. They may, of course, come to a
different decision on the relevance of matters but issues must always relate to
the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the four licensing
objectives.

It must also be noted that just because something has not been considered as
relevant in the information that follows, this does not mean that the issue itself
is not deserving of attention. It just means that it is not an issue that the
Licensing Sub-Committee should consider with regards to their decision on this
application.

Additionally, although something may be considered as being relevant the
Licensing Sub-Committee must still then make a decision on the likelihood of
the issue occurring and the potential for the licensing objective(s) to be
undermined. This is a judgement about the level of risk and will dictate what
action, if any, is appropriate and necessary.

In some paragraphs, the S182 Guidance and the Council’s Licensing Act Policy
is referenced and further information about these documents can be found in
sections 9 and 10 of this report.

Overview of issues considered relevant

Issue 1: The potential for disruption

This is kept in on the basis that borderline representations should be given the
benefit of the doubt. The Licensing Officer feels this gives the Interested Party
an opportunity to expand on it at the hearing and explain in more detail what
the potential disruption is and what could cause it.

Page 8


mailto:licensing@middevon.gov.uk

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

9.0

9.1

9.2

Issue 2: The potential for noise

The Interested Party can give more information about this issue at the hearing,
including details on the noise (and times) that is of concern.

Issue 3: The potential for light pollution
The Interested Party can give more information about this issue at the hearing.

Overview of issues not considered relevant

Issue 4: Provision and legality of parking

The provision of parking in the wider area and how people arrive at the premises
is not something that the applicant can control and the Licensing Officer does
not believe this is relevant. Assuming there are no parking restrictions, any
person could park in certain locations and ultimately, they may do so regardless
of whether or not the premises has a licence.

Although issues around parking and traffic are not considered relevant under
the Licensing Act 2003, both issues may be considerations of Mid Devon as the
Local Planning Authority (LPA). The LPA are, in themselves, a Responsible
Authority and have not made a representation against this application.

Issue 5: Safety of those not using the premises

The representation also mentions potential safety concerns regarding children
using the playground. Paragraph 2.8 of the Section 182 Guidance states that
‘Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their
premises, as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety
of people using the relevant premises rather than public health which is
addressed in other legislation’.

As a result, the Licensing Officer does not believe this is relevant (in terms of
the Licensing Act 2003) and would just state that individual road users remain
accountable for their actions. For example, if people park on double yellow
lines, cause an obstruction or drive dangerously, legislation exists to address
these issues.

LICENSING POLICY

The Licensing Act 2003 requires the Council, as the Licensing Authority, to
formally adopt a policy setting out how it will deal with its duties under the Act.
That policy must be reviewed every five years and the current Policy came into
effect on 7 January 2019. It must be considered in its entirety, but in order to
help proceedings, the following information is highlighted in advance of the
hearing.

In carrying out its licensing function the Licensing Authority must promote the
following four licensing objectives:

Page 9



9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

The prevention of crime and disorder

Public Safety

The prevention of public nuisance

The protection of children from harm (Paragraph 2.2)

It is recognised that the licensing function is only one means of securing the
delivery of the above objectives and should not therefore be seen as a “cure
all” for solving all problems within the community... (Paragraph 3.2)

Where no relevant representations are received, the application will be granted
on the terms applied for. Where relevant representations are received, the
application will be considered by a Licensing Sub Committee at a hearing...
(Paragraph 5.13)

Any party to a hearing may expand on their representation but may not
introduce new or different representations. (Paragraph 5.14)

When determining a licence application, the overriding principle adopted by this
authority will be that each application will be determined on its merits. The
authority will have regard to any guidance issued by the Home Office, this
Statement of Licensing Policy and any measures it deems necessary to
promote the licensing objectives. The authority may depart from the guidelines
in this Policy if it has justifiable and compelling reasons to do so. The authority
will give reasons for any such departure from policy. (Paragraph 6.3)

The authority will expect applicants to demonstrate in their applications active
steps for the promotion of the licensing objectives. When determining an
application, a key consideration for the authority will be the adequacy of
measures proposed in the Operating Schedule to promote the licensing
objectives having regard to the type of premises, the licensable activities to be
provided, the nature of the location and the needs of the local community.
(Paragraph 6.4)

The authority will also have regard to wider considerations affecting the
residential population, businesses and the amenity of an area. These include
alcohol-related violence and disorder, antisocial behaviour, littering and noise,
particularly late at night and in the early morning. (Paragraph 6.5)

When determining an application, the authority will consider all relevant
evidence, both oral and written, provided by parties to a hearing. Evidence
which is irrelevant will be disregarded. The authority encourages applicants and
persons making representations to attend hearings so that they can give
evidence. Where an individual fails to attend the hearing, the authority will
consider their application or representation but may attach less weight to it.
(Paragraph 6.7)

It should be noted that, when determining an application, the authority is making

a judgment about risk. A key purpose of the licensing function is not to respond
to crime and disorder, nuisance or public harm once it has happened but to

Page 10



9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

9.18

make an informed assessment of the risk of such things occurring if a licence
is granted and to take such steps as it considers appropriate to prevent or
minimise such risks. (Paragraph 6.8)

Licence conditions will be tailored to the individual application and only those
considered appropriate to meet the licensing objectives will be imposed.
Licence conditions will not be imposed where other regulatory regimes provide
sufficient protection, for example Health and safety at work, fire safety
legislation etc. (Paragraph 6.9)

The Licensing Authority will also take into account when making its decision
that licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control of
nuisance and anti-social behaviour, especially once individuals have left
licensed premises and are therefore beyond the direct control of licensees.
However, when making a decision, the authority will focus on the direct impact
of the activities taking place on the licensed premises on members of the public
living, working or engaged in normal activity in the area concerned. (Paragraph
6.10)

The ‘need’ or demand for a licensed premises of any kind or the commercial
damage that competition from a new licensed premises would do to other
licensed premises in an area will not be matters that the authority will consider
when discharging its decision making function. (Paragraph 6.11)

The Licensing Authority will deal with the issue of licensing hours on the
individual merits of each application. When the authority’s discretion is engaged
consideration will be given to the individual merits of an application but the
presumption will be to grant the hours requested unless there are objections to
those hours raised by Responsible Authorities or Other Persons on the basis
of the licensing objectives. (Paragraph 6.15)

In general, applications for licensed premises located in residential areas
wishing to open beyond 23.00, and those operating a beer garden or outside
area beyond 21:00, will be expected to have a higher standard of control
included within their operating schedule to address any potential public
nuisance issue. (Paragraph 6.16)

Where representations are received, stricter conditions relating to noise control
may be appropriate and necessary in sensitive locations such as residential
areas. (Paragraph 6.17)

In considering relevant representations, the Licensing Authority will consider
the adequacy of measures proposed to deal with the potential for nuisance
and/or public disorder having regard to all the circumstances of the case.
(Paragraph 6.19)

Conditions are crucial in setting the parameters within which premises can
lawfully operate. Any contravention of a condition on a premises licence or club
premises certificate is a criminal offence so it is essential that conditions are
worded clearly, precisely and unambiguously. In addition, conditions must:

Page 11



9.19

9.20

9.21

9.22

e be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate
e be enforceable
e not duplicate other statutory requirements

e be relevant to the particular type, location and character of the premises
concerned

e not be standardised

e should be justifiable and capable of being met

e not replicate offences set out in the Act or in other legislation
e be written in a prescriptive format. (Paragraph 6.22)

The Authority will pay particular attention to the effect (or potential effect) of
licensable activities on those living, working or otherwise engaged in the area
concerned and, where relevant representations are received, may attach
conditions if it considers it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives. (Paragraph 6.27)

Conditions attached by the Authority to Premises Licences and Club premises
certificates will relate to matters falling within the control of individual licensees.
It is recognised that the licensing function cannot be a mechanism for the
control of disorderly behaviour by individuals once they are beyond the direct
control of the licence holder. However, the Licensing Authority and Responsible
Authorities may take action where it can be established that there is a clear
linkage between disorderly behaviour and a specific premises. (Paragraph
6.28)

The Authority will not impose inappropriate or over-burdensome conditions on
licences. The Authority may, however, if its discretion is engaged, impose
conditions where existing legislation does not provide adequate controls and
additional measures are considered to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. (Paragraph 6.29)

When determining the appropriate set of conditions the Licensing Authority will
focus primarily on the individual style of the premises and the licensable
activities proposed. Consideration should also be given to the following:

e The size, nature and style of operation

e Whether the premises is part of a multiple operator's chain and therefore
more likely to have an operating schedule that is tried and tested

Pagepl?2



9.23

9.24

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

e The cumulative effect of conditions in terms of cost and practical
implementation

e The likely cost of the condition(s) for the operator

e Whether a simpler or better way of dealing with a perceived problem could
be found

e Whether there is an actual risk of undermining an objective, as opposed to
a conceivable risk. In the latter case, there is no need for the condition

e Whether the condition will be enforceable, if it is not specific or could be
considered subjective it may not be enforceable. (Paragraph 6.30)

Members must have regard to the Licensing Authority’s Policy when making
their decision and it can be viewed in full here:

https://www.middevon.gov.uk/business/licensing/new-statement-of-licensing-
policy-licensing-act-2003/

It should be noted that the Policy contains various Appendices, some of which
may be of use to Parties attending the hearing. This includes a ‘Pool of
Conditions’ (https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/346400/appendix-c-pool-of-
conditions.pdf) and a ‘Code of Good Practice’
(https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/346401/appendix-d-code-of-good-

practice.pdf).

GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE

Members are also obliged to have regard to the Guidance produced under
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. The most recent version of this was
published in January 2024 and various sections have been highlighted
throughout this report. The Section 182 Guidance can be viewed here:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-
revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate
conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example,
the most sensitive period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud
music is at night and into the early morning when residents in adjacent
properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. This is why there
is still a need for a licence for performances of live music between 11 pm and
8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise emanating from the
premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as
customers enter and leave. (Paragraph 2.19)

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for

the personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who
engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it

Page 13


https://www.middevon.gov.uk/business/licensing/new-statement-of-licensing-policy-licensing-act-2003/
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/business/licensing/new-statement-of-licensing-policy-licensing-act-2003/
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/346400/appendix-c-pool-of-conditions.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/346400/appendix-c-pool-of-conditions.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/346401/appendix-d-code-of-good-practice.pdf
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/346401/appendix-d-code-of-good-practice.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

11.0

111

11.2

11.3

114

115

would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition,
following relevant representations, that requires the licence holder or club to
place signs at the exits from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until
they leave the area, or that, if they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places
on the premises instead of outside, and to respect the rights of people living
nearby to a peaceful night. (Paragraph 2.21)

DETERMINATION AND OPTIONS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE

The Section 182 Guidance states that: ‘As a matter of practice, licensing
authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the steps considered
appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives that have
given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed
areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their
written representation. They may not add further representations to those
disclosed to the applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their
existing representation and should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within
reasonable and practicable limits’. (Paragraph 9.37)

In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives
in the overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give
appropriate weight to:

e the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;

e the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the
parties;

e this Guidance;
e its own statement of licensing policy. (Paragraph 9.38)

Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing
determinations should be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should
take into account any representations or objections that have been received
from responsible authorities or other persons, and representations made by the
applicant or premises user as the case may be. (Paragraph 9.42)

The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to
what it is intended to achieve. (Paragraph 9.43)

Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would
be suitable to achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing
authority to decide that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should
aim to consider the potential burden that the condition would impose on the
premises licence holder (such as the financial burden due to restrictions on
licensable activities) as well as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion

Page:14



11.6

11.7

11.8

12.0

12.1

13.0

13.1

14.0

of the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative that the authority ensures
that the factors which form the basis of its determination are limited to
consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing outside those
parameters... (Paragraph 9.44)

Options of the Sub-Committee

By virtue of Section 18 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003, the Sub-Committee must,
having regard to any relevant representations, take such steps it considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. This may include:

e Granting the licence as applied for

e Granting the licence subject to appropriate modifications necessary for the
promotion of the licensing objectives

e Excluding from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to
which the application relates

e Refusing to specify a Designated Premises Supervisor

Rejecting the application

Reasons must be given for the decision and they must set out the matters taken
into consideration and why such a decision was arrived at.

Members have five working days from the conclusion of the hearing to make a
decision.

APPEAL

If any party (i.e. applicant or ‘other person’) is dissatisfied with the decision
made then they have the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days
of formal notification of the decision.

THE PROCESS FOR THIS HEARING

The Council have an adopted procedure for hearings and this attached to this
report as Annex 5. In so far as is possible and practicable, the Licensing
Authority will work in accordance with this procedure.

ANNEXES TO THIS REPORT

Annex 1 Copy of application form
Annex 2 Copy of plan

Annex 3 Copy of letter

Annex 4 Copy of representation form
Annex 5 Procedure for hearings

Page 15



Contact for more Information: Tom Keating (Specialist Lead, Licensing) /
tkeating@middevon.gov.uk OR Philip  White (Licensing Officer) [/
hsaid@middevon.gov.uk

Circulation of the Report: Legal Services / Members of Licensing Sub-Committee /
Applicant / Other Parties (as per the Licensing Act)

List of Background Papers:

e Licensing Act 2003 - https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents

e Section 182 Guidance - https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-
memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

e Mid Devon District Council Licensing Act Policy -
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/business/licensing/new-statement-of-licensing-
policy-licensing-act-2003/

Pages16


mailto:tkeating@middevon.gov.uk
mailto:hsaid@middevon.gov.uk
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/business/licensing/new-statement-of-licensing-policy-licensing-act-2003/
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/business/licensing/new-statement-of-licensing-policy-licensing-act-2003/

ANNEX 1

Page 17



iii | as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B)
iv | other (for example a statutory please complete section (B)
corporation)
c) | arecognised club please complete section (B)
d) | acharity please complete section (B)
e) | the proprietor of an educational please complete section (B)
establishment
f) a health service body please complete section (B)
g) | aperson who is registered under Part 2 of
the Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in please complete section (B)
respect of an independent hospital in Wales
ga) | a person who is registered under Chapter 2 please complete section (B)
of Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act
2008 (within the meaning of that Part) in an
independent hospital in England
h) | the chief officer of police of a police force in please complete section (B)
England and Wales

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes
to one box below):

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the
use of the premises for licensable activities; or

| am making the application pursuant to a
statutory function or
a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

(A) individual applicants (fill in as applicable)

I Other Title (for

Mr Mrs Miss Ms example, Rev)
Surname First names
Fay Colm

Date of birth [l 121 18 yearsold orover v Please tick yes

Nationality -

I
Current residential Wembworthy
address if different
from premises
address
Post town Chulmleigh Postcode [

Daytime contact telephone _
number

Pagze 18




E-mail address
(optional) ]

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to
work checking service), the ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service
(please see note 15 for information)

Second individual applicant (if applicable)

Other Title
Mr Mrs Miss Ms (for example,
Rev)
Surname First names
Date of birth | am 18 years old .
or over Please tick yes
Nationality

Current residential
address if different
from premises
address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone
number

E-mail address
(optional)

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to
work checking service), the ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service:
(please see note 15 for information)

(B) Other applicants

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where
appropriate please give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or
other joint venture (other than a body corporate), please give the name and
address of each party concerned.

Name

Pége 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



J

Supply of alcohol
Standard days and
{imings (please read

Will the supply of alcohol be for On the
consumption — please tick (please read premises
guidance note 8)

Fri 1200 | 2330

Sat | 1200 | 2330

Sun | 1200 | 2330

guidance note 7) Off the
premises

Day | Start E'n's Both v

Mon State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol

-------------------- (please read guidance note 5)
N/A

Tue

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the

premises for the supply of alcohol at different times to
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
read guidance note 6)

N/A

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the
licence as designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the
entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of the form):

Name Colm Fay

Date of birth [N
Address

Wembworthy

Crulmleigh

Postcode | NI

Personal licence number (if known) MDV PE1412

Issuing licensing authority (if known) Mid Devon District Council

15
Page 31




Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



the UK (please read guidance note 15).

e The DPS named in this application form is entitied to work in
the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her
from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and | have
seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, or have
conducted an online right to work check using the Home Office
online right to work checking service which confirmed their right
to work (please see note 15)

Date 27/02/2024

Capacity Personal License Holder MDV PE1412

For joint applications, signature of 2" applicant or 2" applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the
applicant, please state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 14)

Pcst town | Postcode \
Telephone number (if any) ]
If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

19
Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



ANNEX 2

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 3

*
To The Licensing Team, Mid Devon District Council, Phoenix House, Phoenix Lane, Tiverton,
Devon. EX16 6PP

From Mrs. Jacqueline Ross,
Ex18 7l

Application 028673
for Wembworthy Village Hall
applicant Mr Colin Fay

Application for a new premises licence for the playing of live and recorded music on two
days a week and the sale and consumption of alcohol on and off the premises on three day
a week.

My basic reason for objecting to the granting of the above licences is that the quiet hamlet at
Spekes Cross is not a suitable venue.

The postcode may be different but opposite and very close to the village hall is a row of cottages
lived in by working people, school age children a farmer who at the moment is lambing and one
retired person who has lived here for 45 years.

Non of the residents of the cottages bought a house opposite to a premises licensed for alcohol (a
pub) and Mr Fay’s application has the potential for 156 -256 days of noise disruption light pollution
and damage to the environment from acute parking problem - never mind drinking and driving. The
new users of the hall don't seem to do walking and as a result the verges and road side are now
full of ruts and mud damaging this important resource for the natural world and making it difficult for
those who do walk.

Incidentally the hall committee have managed up to now with a mixture of bring your own aicohol
and for example 10 temporary licences in 2023 (This number of licences speaks of special
occasions not habitual drinking.)and _band called their racket a rehearsal!

The village hall entrance is on the junction between a busy road between Cotts Cross and
Winkleigh and the road to Wembworthy village. Non of these roads are wide enough to
accommodate parking. The village hall committee lets out the halls parking spaces to local
residents and the lay-by also has residents cars.

The lights (security and fairy) outshine the street light making it hard to see the view from ones
windows for being blinded and blackout curtains are necessary to sleep and ear plugs if you want
to sit in the garden and watch the fading summer light. There are already tables and benches on
the grass.

I have seen many changes from my early days here and have been involve in organising some of
the activities. The hall and the residents have lived in harmony for a long time and Im not against
change but turning the hall into a part time pub replacement is a step too far.

If the Lymington Arms is indeed closing perhaps Mr Fay and his committee could put they energy
into setting up a community pub as other villages do and leave the hall for the wider community.

PN
Mrs J Ross . ~ RECEIVED
Page 43 POST ROOM

S A 202+ N




This page is intentionally left blank



Mid Devon District Council — Licensing Act 2003

REPRESENTATION FORM

This representation is made about the premises to be licensed as detailed below:

Your full name

JACQUELINE ROSS

The name of the organisation / body
you represent (if appropriate)

Postal address

Email address
Contact telephone number

!!!! B%RTHY,CHULML EIGH, EX18 7

Name of the premises you are making a
resentation about

Wembworthy Village Hall,

Address of the premises you are

making a representation about

Spekes Cross Wembworthy

Your representation must reiate to one of the four Licensing Qbjectives

Licensing Objective Yes | Please detail the evidence supporting your
Or | representation or the reason for your representation.
No | Ploase use separate sheets if necessary

To prevent crime and disorder
DISRUPTION TO PEACE AND
PARKING CHAOS

Nene of the residents of the cottages bought a house
opposite a premises licensed for alcohol and Mr Fays
application has the potential for 156-1200 days of
disruption and parking chaos,

PUBLIC SAFETY

NO OFF ROAD PARKING
AVAILABLE AT THIS DANGEROUS
JUNCTION

The village ha!l entranca is located on the junction of the
busy road between Cotts Cross and Winkieigh and the
road into Wembworthy village. None of thesa roads is wide
encugh to accommodate parking The village hail
committee lets out the halls parking to local residents and
the layby also has residents cars

To prevent public nuisance

DAMAGE TO THE ENVIRONMENT

The postcode may be different but opposite and very close
to the village hall is a row of cottages fived in by working
peopie, school age children, a farmer who is lambing at
the moment (disturbed nights) and one senior citizen who
has lived here for 45 years. 156 -260 days / evenings of
disturbance to normal life from nose, light polliution and
parking on the verges creating ruts and mud damaging
this important resource for the naturai worid and making it
difficult for those who do walk.

To protect children from harm
NEXT TO THE CHILDREN'S
PLAYGROUND

The village hall is naxt to the children's playground and the
number of cars parked in the vicinity when there are
events that people come to from outside the village (ie
who do not walk) make it extremely dangerous for children
visiting the playground. This is an all aga facility that
children and teenagers walk to.

Page 45

ANNEX 4



If you are making a representation
against a new application or full
variation, please suggest any
conditions that could be added to the
licence to remedy your representation
{or other suggestions you would like
the Licensing Sub Committee to take
into account).

In 2023 the village hall managed with 10 temporary
licences and some bring your own alcohol evenings. |
suggest that one day a month combined alcohol and
music event licence is enough after all tha viilage hall 1s for
the whole community not just those who want to drink
socially - that's what pubiic houses are %or. if the
Lymington alms is indeed closing perhaps the commitee
could put their energy into tuming it into a community pLgin

as other villages do. Ve ail pay towards the upkeep

Si

-
Pleasa see notes on reverse

Date: /]Gb Arrvl 2074

Page 46




1.0

11

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

ANNEX 5

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL — LICENSING COMMITTEE

Protocol and Procedure for Licensing Sub-Committee Hearings

Introduction

The role of the Sub-Committee is to determine Applications / Notices in an
impartial manner in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Licensing Act
2003, national guidance and the Council’s Policies.

Composition of Sub-Committee

The Sub-Committee shall usually consist of three Councillors drawn on a “panel”
basis from the membership of the Licensing Committee.

In forming the Membership of the Licensing Sub-Committee for a hearing, and
where Councillors availability permits, Members Services shall try to ensure that:

e There are at least two experienced Members in attendance
e Rotation of Membership
‘Experienced’ is defined as having previously taken part in two separate hearings.

Members may sit on a Hearing which relates to their own Ward as long as there is no
conflict of interest “and any relevant declarations are made at the beginning of the
meeting.

The Chairman for a Hearing shall be selected from the Members that form the Sub-
Committee.

When unforeseen circumstances require, or an urgent matter has arisen, the Sub-
Committee may be made up of two Councillors as opposed to three.

Hearings to be held in public

Licensing Hearings shall take place in public. However, the Sub-Committee

may exclude the public (including a party to the hearing) from all or part of a hearing
where it considers that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest
in the hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in public.

The Sub-Committee may require any person attending the hearing who is in their
opinion behaving in a disruptive manner to leave the hearing and may:

a) refuse to permit that person to return, or
1

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



	Agenda
	3 DETERMINATION OF A NEW PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION FOR WEMBWORTHY VILLAGE HALL, THE VILLAGE, WEMBWORTHY, CHULMLEIGH, DEVON, EX18 7QR
	Annex 1 - application form redacted
	Annex 2 - Site plan
	Annex 3 - Original letter redacted
	Annex 4 - Rep form redacted
	Annex 5 - Procedure for hearings


